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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

JIMMY PATRONIS
STATE OF FLORIDA

March 27, 2023

Citizens of the State of Florida

The Honorable Ron DeSantis, Governor

The Honorable Kathleen Passidomo, President of the Senate

The Honorable Paul Renner, Speaker of the House of Representatives

To the Citizens of Florida, Governor DeSantis, President Passidomo, and Speaker Renner:

I am pleased to submit the State of Florida’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, in
accordance with Section 216.102(3), Florida Statutes (F.S.). This report is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report based upon a
comprehensive framework of internal control. The objective of internal control is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of material misstatements. The concept of reasonable assurance ensures that the costs do not exceed
the benefits derived.

The Auditor General has issued an opinion on the state’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The independent
auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be
read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE STATE

Florida’s Constitution divides the governmental structure of the state into three independent branches. The Legislative Branch has
exclusive lawmaking power for the state. The Executive Branch, consisting of the Governor, Cabinet, and their agencies, administers the
laws made by the Legislature. The Governor shares executive power and responsibility with the Cabinet, which is composed of the
Attorney General, Chief Financial Officer, and Commissioner of Agriculture. The Judicial Branch interprets the law and applies the
Constitution. The organizational chart following this letter provides an overview of the state’s structure. Florida’s government provides a
range of services to its citizens including education, health and family services, transportation, public safety, law and corrections, natural
resources and environmental protection.

The financial reporting entity of the state includes the primary government as well as component units for which the state is either
financially accountable or a relationship exists with the state such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading.
Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for a listing of Florida’s component units and the Financial Section of the report to obtain an
overview of their financial positions.

Florida’s budget is prepared using the processes set forth in Chapter 216, F.S. The major phases of the budget process are detailed in the
Other Required Supplementary Information Section of this report. Florida law strictly prohibits overspending and requires budgetary
control to be maintained at the individual appropriation account level.

ECONOMIC CONDITION

Florida recorded its second year of strong double-digit growth in General Revenue Fund collections when the state’s fiscal year ended on
June 30, 2022, signaling an economy near full recovery from the worst of the pandemic. From this point forward, Florida’s near-term
economic outlook is largely linked to the health of the national economy.

Nearly three years after the onset of the pandemic, economic projections are still proving to be a challenge for national forecasters. As this
report is put to bed, significant economic ups and downs are occurring almost daily, some of which provide conflicting messages about the
future. In early December 2022, a survey conducted by the National Association for Business Economics (NABE) showed participants
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continued to downgrade expectations for the U.S. economy, with predictions of still elevated inflation, slower economic growth, and a
weaker—Dbut not contracting—Ilabor market. A majority of respondents (57 percent) believed there is more than a 50 percent probability
that a recession will occur in 2023, albeit mild. About 82 percent of the panelists believed the balance of risks to economic growth through
2023 is weighted to the downside. Sixty-five percent of the panelists believed the greatest downside risk to the U.S. economy through
2023, considering both probability of occurrence and potential impact, is too much monetary tightness.

December 2022 also saw the seventh rate hike by the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) since the calendar year began, with four
consecutive increases of 75 basis points before a year-end 50 basis-point change. These actions brought rates to a targeted range between
4.25 percent and 4.50 percent, the highest level since December 2007. In its statement, the FOMC indicated that it anticipates ongoing
increases in the target range will be appropriate in order to attain a stance of monetary policy that is sufficiently restrictive to return
inflation to 2 percent over time. NABE participants have varying estimates of the length of monetary policy lags—the time between
implementation and the full impact on the real economy—with 75 percent believing the lag falls somewhere between 6 and 18 months,
suggesting that the impact of the FOMC'’s past actions is just beginning to take hold.

On December 13, 2022, inflation data for November was released. The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers in November rose
7.1 percent over the last 12 months before seasonal adjustment. This was the slowest 12-month pace since December 2021, closing out a
year in which inflation hit the highest level in four decades. While the figure for the month showed a modest deceleration in inflation for
the second month in a row, the costs of essential items and housing still remain stubbornly high and well above the Federal Reserve's long-
term price stability target of 2 percent. The shelter (housing) component is the single largest contributor to the overall result. Eighty-five
percent of NABE participants anticipate that core personal consumption expenditure (PCE) inflation will not decline to a year-over-year
rate of 2 percent until 2024 or later. This is an expectation that the individual FOMC members seem to share, with the latest dot plot
suggesting ongoing increases until a terminal rate of at least 5.1 percent is reached.

While all of this new information will become the foundation of its work, the state’s Economic Estimating Conference has not met since
July and August 2022 to revise its projections. Because the Conference had already assumed a slowdown during the current fiscal year, the
Legislature’s Office of Economic and Demographic Research (EDR) believes that many of the earlier forecasts will largely withstand the
incorporation of a mild recession. A few of the key indicators unique to Florida are discussed below.

One measure for assessing the economic health of states is the year-to-year change in real Gross Domestic Product (GDP); this is the gain
or loss in all goods and services produced or exchanged within a state. According to the latest revised data, Florida’s quarterly GDP
movements have generally mirrored the nation as a whole since the beginning of the pandemic. Buffeted by a series of economic shocks,
the state’s GDP slumped -0.5 percent in the 2019-20 fiscal year, grew 2.5 percent in the 2020-21 fiscal year, and expanded at more than
double that rate (5.2 percent) in the 2021-22 fiscal year. Absent a significant economic contraction at the national level, Florida’s
Economic Estimating Conference anticipates that the state’s economy will expand only 1.0 percent this fiscal year as economic imbalances
weigh down the economy, but beginning next year (the 2023-24 fiscal year), it will grow at a more characteristic 2.0 percent per year.

Normally, personal income growth is another important gauge of the state’s economic health; however, its changes have been in stark
contrast to GDP, driven largely by the ebb and flow of federal dollars into Florida households and businesses. For example, in the first
quarter of the 2021 calendar year, Florida’s personal income growth shot up 63.0 percent, largely due to two different federal stimulus and
relief programs converging in the quarter. As the federal support measures began to fade in the next quarter, the state’s personal income
plummeted to an annualized loss of -18.6 percent, yet yielded a final growth rate for the 2020-21 fiscal year of 7.9 percent, the highest rate
since 2015. The 2021-22 fiscal year saw moderately lower growth of 5.5 percent as the benefit from workers returning to their jobs or
leveraging the tight labor market into better paying opportunities competed with the end of federal relief measures. Barring a serious
national contraction, the Economic Estimating Conference expects growth of 6.4 percent in the 2022-23 fiscal year, largely on the
continuing strength of salary growth. Thereafter, annual growth rates are expected to remain solidly at or above 4.0 percent.

The key measures of employment are job growth and the unemployment rate. After a -1.1 percent decline in fiscal year 2019-20, total non-
farm employment declined by another -1.7 percent in the 2020-21 fiscal year. Following the other extremes experienced during the
pandemic, the projected +5.9 percent growth for the 2021-22 fiscal year was the highest annual growth rate since the series began in 1991.
By October 2022, Florida exceeded the pre-pandemic level (February 2020) by 467,000 jobs, a gain of 5.1 percent; however, job growth is
expected to moderate for the remainder of the 2022-23 fiscal year, producing a 3.3 percent rate for the entire year. Thereafter, annual
growth will step back in tandem with the national projections to 1.3 percent in the 2023-24 fiscal year and 0.6 percent in the 2024-25 fiscal
year.

The state’s Economic Estimating Conference assumes the “full employment” unemployment rate is about 4 percent. Florida’s
unemployment rate was below this level from February 2018 through February 2020. With the onset of the pandemic, the unemployment
rate spiked to 13.9 percent in May 2020, handily surpassing the prior peak rate of 10.9 percent experienced in the first four months of 2010
during the Great Recession. Florida’s unemployment rate of 2.7 percent is now near its lowest recorded rate in modern times: the first half
of 2006 when it was 2.4 percent. The Conference projects that the unemployment rate will average 3.8 percent in fiscal year 2022-23.
Thereafter, the rate modestly increases to 4.1 in the 2023-24 fiscal year and 4.2 percent in the 2024-25 fiscal year.
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Two areas of the state’s economy indirectly benefited from the Federal Reserve’s actions to protect the economy from the worst of the
pandemic effects, but with a future payback: real estate and construction. Throughout the worst of the crisis, these economic sectors
thrived as the federal funds rate neared zero and pushed interest rates to historical lows. By the end of the 2021-22, single-family starts had
reached a 15-year annual high at 137,800 units, even though they were still far from the peak during the housing boom of 181,880 units.
The momentum has already reversed. The Federal Reserve’s aggressive actions to tame inflation has had its most direct impact on the
housing market. Consecutive annual declines are expected over most years of the forecast as residential construction activity returns to the
levels expected pre-pandemic, with the worst periods immediately ahead: the 2022-23 and 2023-24 fiscal years. NABE participants also
anticipate home prices to rise at a much slower rate by the end of 2022, and then decline outright in 2023. Home prices, as measured by the
Federal Housing Finance Agency’s House Price Index (HPI), are projected to rise 8.6 percent in 2022 (Q4/Q4), down from the actual 18.0
percent increase in 2021. Fifty-four percent of NABE panelists believe existing home prices will fall 10-19 percent from peak to trough
over the next 12 to 18 months. Another 15 percent believed the drop could be even higher. IHS Markit currently places the drop at 16.4
percent. Should these price drops come to pass, it will be a much stronger response to the Federal Reserve’s actions than anticipated by the
Economic Estimating Conference during the summer.

While all Florida industries were impacted by the pandemic-induced economic contraction, Florida’s leisure and hospitality industry bore
the brunt of the longer-term consequences. The total number of tourists plunged nearly -70.0 percent from the prior year in the second
quarter of 2020. The magnitude of this loss caused the entire 2019-20 fiscal year to record a -19.1 percent decline in tourists. The damage
continued in 2020-21, leading to an additional -7.2 percent loss from the prior year’s already suppressed level—a combined -25.0 percent
decline from the 2018-19 record-breaking year. By the end of the 2021-22 fiscal year, an outsized increase in domestic visitors offset some
of the international losses, leading to growth of 39.4 percent over 2020-21 and growth of 4.6 percent over the prior peak. Slowly returning
to a more normal mix of visitors in the midst of strong economic headwinds, the 2022-23 fiscal year will see growth of just 2.4 percent,
with some strength returning in 2023-24 (4.4 percent growth). The annual growth rates moderate thereafter, gradually declining from 3.9
percent in 2024-25 to 3.1 percent in 2031-32. Notably, the new forecast levels never exceed the pre-pandemic forecast levels.

Finally, Florida’s economic stability is vulnerable to the potential impacts of natural disasters, especially major hurricanes. This
vulnerability can take several different forms, but one of the most immediate is to the state’s long-term financial health. Although there is a
widespread misconception that hurricanes are somehow beneficial to the state from an economic perspective, state government typically
has expenditures greater than any incremental increase in the revenue estimate from rebuilding. As part of a presentation on the state’s
Long-Range Financial Outlook in early September, EDR noted that the state’s record-breaking reserves (nearly $42.0 billion at the time)
would see the state through any event likely to happen during the remainder of the hurricane season. A few weeks later, this assessment
was put to the test. Hurricane Ian made landfall on September 28, 2022, as a Category 4 hurricane and was followed by Hurricane Nicole
on November 10, 2022. The Legislature has already met in a Special Session to provide—among other issues brought to the forefront by
the back-to-back hurricanes—financial relief to the most hard-hit areas of the state. They authorized appropriations of $751.5 million (see
Senate Bill 4-A: Disaster Relief), but additional appropriations are expected during the Regular Session. When the November revenue
collection report is released by EDR, it will contain the beginning effects of what will likely be a prolonged recovery and rebuilding stage.
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

Claude Denson Pepper Building, Suite G74
Sherrill F. Norman, CPA 111 West Madison Street Phone: (850) 412-2722
Auditor General Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Fax: (850) 488-6975

The President of the Senate, the Speaker of the
House of Representatives, and the
Legislative Auditing Committee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the accompanying financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Florida, as of
June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the fiscal year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of;

e The Prepaid College Program Fund, which is a major enterprise fund and represents 30 percent
and 3 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The Florida Turnpike System, which represents 79 percent and 88 percent, respectively, of the
assets and revenues of the Transportation major enterprise fund.

e The Hurricane Catastrophe Fund, which is a major enterprise fund and represents 29 percent and
10 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The College Savings Plan and the trust fund maintained by the State Board of Administration to
account for the investments of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program, which
collectively represent 6 percent of the assets and 12 percent of the investment earnings (losses)
of the aggregate remaining fund information.

e The Florida Retirement System Trust Fund maintained by the State Board of Administration to
account for the assets and investment income of the Florida Retirement System Defined Benefit
Pension Plan which represent 91 percent and 85 percent, respectively, of the assets and
investment income (loss) of the Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds.



e The Florida Housing Finance Corporation, Citizens Property Insurance Corporation, component
units related to the State’s universities and colleges, and certain other funds and entities that, in
the aggregate, represent 63 percent and 36 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the discretely presented component units.

The financial statements for the above-listed funds and entities were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for
these funds and entities, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. OQur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. Ve are required to be independent of the State of Florida and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. Ve
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2, the State of Florida implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, which is a change in accounting principle that addresses the
accounting and financial reporting for leases. This affects the comparability of amounts reported in the
2021-22 fiscal year with amounts reported in the 2020-21 fiscal year. QOur opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the State of Florida’s ability to
continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absclute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is greater than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the



aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the State of Florida’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the State of Florida's ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 19 through 25 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on
pages 188 through 192, Budget to GAAP Reconciliation on page 193, Budgetary Reporting on pages
194 through 195, Schedule of Proportionate Share and Schedule of State Contributions for pension
on pages 196 through 199, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Schedule of State
Contributions on pages 200 through 201, Schedule of Changes in Other Postemployment Benefits
Liability on pages 202 through 203, and Information About Infrastructure Assets Reported Using
the Modified Approach on pages 204 through 205 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the GASE who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State of Florida's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements



and related budgetary comparison schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS by us and other auditors. In our opinion,
based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of the other auditors,
the combining and individual fund statements and related budgetary comparison schedules are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial
report. The other information comprises the Introductory Section on pages 6 through 9, and the Statistical
Section on pages 293 through 327, but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information appears otherwise to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 27, 2023, on our consideration of the State of Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, administrative rules, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters included under the heading INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the State of Florida’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the State of Florida’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

YR) A

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA
Tallahassee, Florida
March 27, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) introduces the basic financial statements
and provides an analytical overview of the State of Florida’s (the state’s) financial activities and performance for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022 (fiscal year 2021-22). Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the state’s financial statements that are
presented in the Financial Section of this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

Financial Statements Overview
The state’s basic financial statements are comprised of the following elements:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the state's overall financial
condition. Changes in the state’s financial position may be measured over time by increases and decreases in the Statement of
Net Position. Information on how the state’s net position changed during the fiscal year is presented in the Statement of
Activities. Financial information for the state’s component units is also presented.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements for governmental and proprietary funds focus on individual parts of the state, reporting the state's
operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. Fund financial statements for fiduciary funds are also
included to provide financial information related to the state’s fiduciary activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the government-
wide and fund financial statements. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for more information on the elements of the
financial statements. Table 1 below summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements.

Table 1: Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Fund Financial Statements

Financial Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Instances in which the state is
the trustee or agent for

someone else’s resources

Activities of the state that are
operated similar to private
businesses

Activities of the state that are
not proprietary or fiduciary

Entire state government
(except fiduciary funds) and
the state’s component units

Balance sheet .
Statement of revenues, .
expenditures, and

changes in fund balances

Required financial + Statement of net position ¢
statements » Statement of activities .

Statement of net position
Statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in
net position

+ Statement of cash flows

+ Statement of fiduciary net
position

» Statement of changes in
fiduciary net position

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Type of asset, liability, and
deferred outflow/inflow
information

Type of inflow/outflow
information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

* Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets included

* All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

e All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

» All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid

* Revenues for which cash

is received during or soon

after the end of the year

» Expenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is
due during the year or
soon thereafter

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid

19




2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

Condensed Government-wide Financial Statements and Overall Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position

Table 2 below presents the state’s Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2022, and 2021, derived from the
government-wide Statement of Net Position. The state’s net position at the close of the fiscal year was $101.8 billion for
governmental activities and $31.6 billion for business-type activities which was a combined total of $133.4 billion for the
primary government. The three components of net position include net investments in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. The largest component, totaling $93.8 billion as of June 30, 2022, reflects net investments in capital assets. The
state uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and businesses in the state; consequently, this component of net
position is not available for future spending. Restricted net position is the next largest component, totaling $30.6 billion as of
June 30, 2022. Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or
enabling legislation on how they can be used.

Governmental activities reflect an unrestricted net position of $7.8 billion at June 30, 2022, an increase of $18.5 billion over
the prior year. The increase in the unrestricted net position over that reported in prior years is explained in the Major Fund
Analysis, Governmental Funds section that follows.

Business-type activities reflect a restricted net position of $17.2 billion at June 30, 2022, an increase of $0.9 billion over the
prior year. The increase in the restricted net position over that reported in prior years is explained in the Major Fund Analysis,
Proprietary Funds section that follows.

Table 2: Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30

(in millions)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current and other assets $ 63,963 $ 43,645 § 37,403 $ 40,562 $ 101,366 § 84,207
Capital and leased assets, net 85,836 83,491 17,120 15,927 102,956 99,418
Total assets 149,799 127,136 54,523 56,489 204,322 183,625
Total deferred outflows of resources 3,922 4,980 111 121 4,033 5,101
Other liabilities 12,898 15,683 5,541 8,758 18,439 24,441
Noncurrent liabilities 26,253 34,083 17,137 18,037 43,390 52,120
Total liabilities 39,151 49,766 22,678 26,795 61,829 76,561
Total deferred inflows of resources 12,819 4,414 326 250 13,145 4,664
Net position
Net investments in capital assets 80,475 77,435 13,370 12,591 93,845 90,026
Restricted 13,451 11,168 17,194 16,308 30,645 27,476
Unrestricted 7,825 (10,667) 1,066 666 8,891 (10,001)
Total net position $101,751 $ 77,936 § 31,630 $ 29,565 § 133,381 § 107,501
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Statement of Activities

Table 3 presents the state’s Condensed Statement of Activities for fiscal year 2021-22 and fiscal year 2020-21, as derived from
the government-wide Statement of Activities. Over time, increases and decreases in the net position measure whether the
state’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. The state’s total net position increased during the fiscal year by $25.8
billion. The net position of governmental activities increased by $23.8 billion, and the net position of business-type activities
increased by $2.0 billion. The majority of the $402 million increase in total program expenses for governmental activities
relates to a $2.0 billion increase in Human Services expenses and $1.8 billion decrease in General government expenses, while
the largest decrease in business-type activities expenses is the $19.2 billion decrease in Reemployment Assistance program
expenses. Refer to the Major Fund Analysis section for information regarding the overall increase in revenues from
governmental activities.

Table 3: Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(in millions)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 11,046 $ 8,556 $ 11,034 $ 14,181 $ 22,080 $ 22,737
Operating grants and contributions 51,700 46,653 1,299 18,685 52,999 65,338
Capital grants and contributions 1,850 2,152 — 1 1,850 2,153
Total program revenues 64,596 57,361 12,333 32,867 76,929 90,228
General revenues and payments
Sales and use tax 38414 30,452 — — 38414 30,452
Other taxes 19,210 16,700 — — 19,210 16,700
Investment earnings (loss) (1,600) (415) (22) @) (1,622) (422)
Miscellaneous — 21 3 1 3 22
Total general revenues and payments 56,024 46,758 (19) (6) 56,005 46,752
Total revenues 120,620 104,119 12,314 32,861 132,934 136,980
Program expenses
General government 9,386 11,254 — — 9,386 11,254
Education 25,407 25,506 — — 25,407 25,506
Human services 48,864 46,913 — — 48,864 46,913
Criminal justice and corrections 4,674 5,156 — — 4,674 5,156
Natural resources and environment 3,316 3,473 — — 3,316 3,473
Transportation 5,795 4,491 964 822 6,759 5,313
Judicial branch 454 702 — — 454 702
Lottery — — 6,983 6,861 6,983 6,861
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — — 71 1,383 71 1,383
Prepaid College Program — — (1,093) (39) (1,093) (39)
Reemployment Assistance — — 1,785 21,013 1,785 21,013
Nonmajor enterprise funds — — 386 420 386 420
Indirect interest on long term debt 74 77 — — 74 77
Total program expenses 97,970 97,572 9,096 30,460 107,066 128,032
Excess (deficiency) before gain (loss) and
transfers 22,650 6,547 3,218 2,401 25,868 8,948
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (14) (14) @) (3) 2D 17
Transfers 1,188 2,337 (1,188) (2,337) — —
Change in net position 23,824 8,870 2,023 61 25,847 8,931
Beginning net position, as restated (Note 2) 77,927 69,066 29,607 29,504 107,534 98,570
Ending net position $101,751 $ 77,936 $ 31,630 $ 29,565 $133,381 $107,501
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Major Fund Analysis

Governmental Funds

The state’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $45.0 billion at June 30, 2022, a $18.0 billion or
66.5 percent increase from the prior year. Revenues increased by $14.6 billion or 14.0 percent, other financing sources and
uses decreased by $0.3 billion or 9.0 percent, and expenditures increased by $402.2 million or 0.4 percent. Overall increases in
revenues and expenditures were primarily attributable to an increase in taxes, fees and charges.

Proprietary Funds

The state’s proprietary funds report combined ending net position of $31.6 billion at June 30, 2022, of which $13.4 billion is the
net investment in capital assets and $17.2 billion is restricted for specific purposes. The remaining $1.0 billion was unrestricted
and available for purposes of the various funds. Information is provided below regarding major funds with significant
variances relative to the prior year.

Transportation - This fund reported net position of $14.5 billion at June 30, 2022, an increase of $1.05 billion or 7.8 percent.
The increase in net position was primarily due to an increase in contributions to support road construction and other capital
projects.

Lottery — This fund reported net position of $33 million at June 30, 2022, a decrease of $19 million or 37 percent. The
decrease in net position was primarily due to a decrease in the amount restricted for undistributed appreciation on restricted
investments, a decrease in the amount invested in capital assets and an increase in the amount of restricted for future prizes or
special prize promotions.

Reemployment Assistance — This fund reported restricted net position of $1.9 billion at June 30, 2022, an increase of $853
million or 85 percent. The increase in restricted net position was primarily due to a decrease in reemployment assistance
claims.

Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — The restricted net position at June 30, 2022, totaled $10.9 billion, an increase of $714.8
million or 7 percent. The primary reason for an increase in the Fund's net position was due to stabilization of outstanding
losses for events occurring in prior years.

Prepaid College Program — The restricted net position at June 30, 2022, totaled $4.1 billion, a decrease of $623.7 million or
13.2 percent. Net position and revenues decreased due to investment losses, primarily in the first and second quarters of 2022,
due to an overall decline in the financial markets. Expenses increased primarily due to a decrease in actuarial value of future
contract benefits and to increases in investment expense and securities lending expense.

General Fund Budget Variances

Budgeted expenditures are based on revenues estimated by the Revenue Estimating Conference and other sources. Original
expenditures are budgeted for less than total expected available resources. There was a $4.8 billion increase between the
original and final estimated revenues. Final budgeted total expenditures increased by $249.7 million from the original budget.
Variances between the original and final budget or between the final budgeted and actual amounts are not expected to
significantly affect future services or liquidity. For additional information on the budget variances, refer to the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule for the General Fund in the Other Required Supplementary Information section of the ACFR.

Capital Asset, Leased Asset and Long-term Debt Activity
Capital Asset Activity

At June 30, 2022, the state reported $85.8 billion in net capital assets for governmental activities and $17.1 billion in net capital
assets for business-type activities. Net capital assets for governmental and business-type activities increased from fiscal year
2020-21 to fiscal year 2021-22 by approximately 3.6 percent. The increase is primarily due to the capitalization of construction
costs for infrastructure projects. Capitalized infrastructure projects include additions to and/or enhancements of roadways and
bridges on the state’s highway system. Construction commitments by the Florida Department of Transportation were
approximately $15.7 billion. Construction commitments by other state agencies for major projects including office buildings
and correctional facilities increased by approximately $713.5 million compared to the prior year. Refer to Note 7 to the
financial statements for information on capital assets and Note 9 to the financial statements for information on construction
commitments.

Leased Asset Activity

At June 30, 2022, the state had $1.4 billion in leased assets, net of amortization. The state began recording leased assets in fiscal
year 2021-22, pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 - Leases. Refer to Note 6 in
the notes to the financial statements for additional information on the leased assets.
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Long-term Debt Activity

Total bonded debt outstanding decreased by $1.4 billion, or approximately 7.4 percent, from the prior fiscal year to a total of
$17.9 billion at June 30, 2022 due to new debt issued being less than scheduled amortization and debt service payments. The
majority of the outstanding bonded debt serves to finance educational facilities ($7.4 billion), the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe
Fund ($3.5 billion) and transportation ($6.1 billion). New and refinanced bonded debt issues for 2022 totaled $1.6 billion.
Public-Private Partnership (PPP) contracts outstanding decreased from the prior year by $238 million or 8.2 percent to a total of
$2.7 billion. The annual debt service requirements increased from $2.0 billion in 2021 to $2.1 billion in 2022. The annual debt
service payment remained relatively stable between the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year. The annual debt service is
projected to decrease to approximately $1.6 billion through Fiscal Year 2024, then continue to decrease to approximately
$1.55 billion in Fiscal Year 2025, reflecting the payment obligations for the PPP I-395 and I-4 projects.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, the State of Florida recorded $3.5 billion in pension liabilities for the defined benefit plans it
administers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The $3.5 billion includes the State’s proportionate share of the liability for
the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan, the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy Program, and the Florida National Guard
Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan. (See Note 8 to the Financial Statements for further information.)

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, the State of Florida recorded $7.3 billion in other postemployment benefits liabilities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. This resulted in an increase of $140 million or 2.0 percent. (See Note 8 to the Financial Statements for
further information.)

The state maintained its credit ratings during the past year. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, all three major rating
agencies (Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investors Services) rated the state in the highest rating
category and have affirmed the state’s AAA general obligation rating and stable outlooks. The state’s benchmark debt ratio
decreased in Fiscal Year 2022 to 3.78 percent and is projected to remain below the 6 percent policy target for the foreseeable
future.

Section 11 of Article VII of the State Constitution authorizes the state to issue general obligation bonds or revenue bonds to
finance or refinance fixed capital outlay projects authorized by law. General obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and
credit of the state and payable from specified taxes. Revenue bonds are payable solely from specified revenues. The
responsibility to issue most state bonds rests with the Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration.
However, certain quasi-governmental entities also incur debt and are reported as part of the primary government. See the State
of Florida 2022 Debt Report for more detailed information about the state’s debt position. The report can be found at
www.sbafla.com/bondfinance or by contacting the Division of Bond Finance, 1801 Hermitage Boulevard, Suite 200,
Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850) 488-4782. Additional information on long-term debt is also found in Notes 6b, 8, 10, 11, 12
and 13 to the financial statements and the Statistical Section of this report.

Infrastructure Accounted for Using the Modified Approach

The state elected to use the modified approach to account for roadways, bridges, and other infrastructure assets of the State
Highway System. Under this approach, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) committed to maintain these assets
at levels established by FDOT and approved by the Florida Legislature. No depreciation expense is reported for these assets,
nor are amounts capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such assets, unless the improvements
also increase their service potential. FDOT maintains an inventory of these assets and performs periodic assessments to
establish that predetermined condition levels are being maintained. The condition assessments performed during fiscal year
2021-22 show that the roadways and bridges of the State Highway System are being maintained at or near FDOT standards.
These condition assessments were consistent with condition assessments conducted during past years. In addition, FDOT
makes annual estimates of the amounts that must be expended to maintain the roadways and bridges included on the State
Highway System at the predetermined condition levels. These estimates are based on the FDOT five-year plan that is revised as
projects are added, deleted, adjusted, or postponed. Refer to the Other Required Supplementary Information of the ACFR for
information on FDOT’s established condition standards, recent condition assessments, and other information on infrastructure
reported on the modified approach.

Economic Factors

Still transitioning to more typical economic behaviors after the worst of the pandemic effects, the overall economy had
strengthened—and in some respects overheated—as the state’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. General Fund tax collections
came in 21.4 percent higher than the prior fiscal year, which had also seen a strong double-digit increase. This generally
mirrors the increase in federal revenues over a similar time period (21.0 percent, the largest percentage increase in five decades)
and General Fund growth in other states (14.5 percent across all states). Even so, signs of economic disruption were still
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evident, with challenges including the end of significant federal monetary and fiscal stimulus provided during the early years of
the pandemic, the rapid drawdown of savings over the past year, the elevated use of credit over the previous few months, the
continued normalization of spending on services and away from taxable goods, and strong inflationary pressures on households.
Nonetheless, state revenue collections far exceeded expectations and the economic fundamentals, confounding the ability to
predict the impact and timing of key turning points. Ultimately, the annual growth rates for the General Fund are expected to
go through a multiyear period of adjustment prior to stabilizing at the 2.8 percent annual growth projected for the long run.

Nearly all (88.7 percent) of the year-over-year net increase in General Fund receipts (total revenue minus refunds) came from
the gain in sales tax collections. Over the past 18 years, this revenue source’s share of the fund has changed from a 70.6
percent in fiscal year 2004-05 to 77.3 percent in fiscal year 2021-22, which means that even a modest increase in collections
from the prior year translates into a nontrivial dollar gain. As the economy continued to normalize in the post-pandemic world,
total sales tax liability increased 26.4 percent from fiscal year 2020-21 to fiscal year 2021-22, with all six of the state’s sales tax
categories used for reporting purposes (consumer nondurables, tourism and recreation, autos and accessories, other durables,
construction and building investment, and business investment) showing positive growth over the already recovering prior year.
This equates to a $7.89 billion increase from the fiscal year 2020-21 level for this source, of which $6.88 billion flowed through
to the General Fund. Because the state’s Revenue Estimating Conference had previously expected the underlying economic
disruption to erode some of the potential sales tax growth, the final strength of that gain to the General Fund came as a windfall
of nearly $2.65 billion or 8.4 percent of the anticipated level for the year. There are several reasons why this occurred, but one
is particularly problematic. The initial response to inflation is an increase in sales tax collections that reflects the higher prices.
Persistent inflation conditions, however, ultimately suppress collections as consumers begin to spend more money on non-
taxable necessities like food and healthcare. The precise turning point between the two conditions is difficult to predict.

Several revenue sources continued to perform better than expected, still benefiting from government actions to provide relief
and support during the first crucial stages of the pandemic. Among these sources, collections of both the documentary stamp
and intangibles taxes rely predominantly on activity in the state’s real estate market. To provide an important firewall between
the turmoil in the economy at-large and the financial system, the Federal Reserve aggressively instituted rate cuts to near-zero
percent, backstopped credit markets and created new facilities to buy corporate debt. One result was record low interest rates
that set off a surge of home buying and refinancing that began in the last quarter of fiscal year 2019-20. These effects
continued through the 2021-22 fiscal year, with total Documentary Stamp Tax collections topping the fiscal year 2005-06 peak
reached at the height of Florida’s housing boom for the second year in a row. The results for fiscal year 2021-22 were even
more eye-popping than the prior year with collections soaring to nearly $5.4 billion. As rates rise and affordability is
increasingly an issue, Documentary Stamp Tax collections are expected to decline in 2022-23 by 15.6 percent and by another
10.7 percent in 2023-24. Reflecting a slightly different aspect of the market, intangibles tax collections, which entirely benefit
the General Fund, continued to grow as refinancing activity stayed stronger than expected, ultimately posting a 20.9 percent
gain over the prior year—albeit a marked drop from that year’s growth of 42.3 percent.

Similarly, corporate income tax collections grew another 10.8 percent after the prior year’s 37.3 percent. According to the
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, underlying profits remain high, and corporations have, so far, been able to pass higher input
costs fully onto consumers. The precise reasons for the still high profitability are not yet totally clear, raising serious questions
about its ability to persist into future years. Echoing the comments from last year included in a tax analysis by the
Congressional Budget Office, “Those collections were more robust than the amounts implied by currently available data on the
economy given the past relationship between the level of economic activity and revenues.” Because the state’s Revenue
Estimating Conference assumes that the 2022-23 fiscal year will have even stronger double-digit growth, corporate income tax
receipts may prove to be a risk to the overall General Fund forecast.

In addition to the revenue sources discussed above, collections of two other General Fund sources showed material growth over
the prior year: insurance premium tax and article V fees and transfers. Receipts for the latter were boosted as courts fully
reopened relative to the 2020-21 fiscal year. Altogether, nearly 56 percent of the state’s General Fund sources posted gains
over the prior year. Of the seven sources that lost ground during the year (earnings on investments, pari-mutuel taxes, highway
safety licenses and fees, counties Medicaid share, corporate filing fees, other nonoperating revenue, and tobacco taxes) earnings
on investment was by far the most significant. The year-over-year loss was primarily related to portfolio adjustments and
administrative process changes.

The Revenue Estimating Conference last met in August 2022 to revise the General Fund forecast for fiscal years 2022-23 and
2023-24. After coming in nearly $3.85 billion over estimate for the 2021-22 fiscal year, the Conference added a similar amount
($3.45 billion) to the overall forecast for the 2022-23 fiscal year. Even at that, the new forecast for collections embedded a
decline of -4.6 percent from the outsized prior year. Assuming a downshift will begin sometime in the current year, the
Conference increased the 2023-24 fiscal year forecast by only $1.82 billion, with the positive annual adjustments declining
thereafter. The two-year combined increase for 2022-23 and 2023-24 added nearly $5.3 billion to the prior forecast. These
changes reflected increases over the previous estimates of 8.9 percent in 2022-23 and 4.5 percent in 2023-24.

As a buffer against any future emergencies and to control recurring spending commitments, the latest General Revenue Outlook
shows that there will be $13.72 billion in unallocated general revenue remaining at the end of the current fiscal year. In
addition, the state’s major reserve for emergencies, the Budget Stabilization Fund, has a planned balance of $3.14 billion. The
fund balance is now at the highest recorded level in its history. In addition, the Legislature created the Emergency Preparedness
and Response Fund during the 2022 Regular Session as a primary source of funding for preparing or responding to a disaster
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declared by the Governor as a state of emergency. Between the three funds, reserves total $17.36 billion or 41.3 percent of the
state’s estimated General Fund tax collections for the current year (after payment of refunds). According to the state’s Long-
Range Financial Outlook adopted in September 2022, the state will not have a budget gap in the upcoming fiscal year
(2023-24), meaning the projected revenues will meet all anticipated needs. At the time the report was adopted by the state’s
Legislative Budget Commission, the surplus of revenues over needs was over $13.53 billion, but 81.2 percent of this was
nonrecurring dollars.

Contact the State’s Financial Management

Questions about this report or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to:

Department of Financial Services
Bureau of Financial Reporting
Statewide Financial Reporting Section
200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0364
(850) 413-5511
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,919 § 142,151  $ 193,070 $ 3,428,213
Pooled investments with State Treasury 48,868,350 3,286,243 52,154,593 4,371,482
Other investments 732,831 29,865,799 30,598,630 18,056,176
Receivables, net 7,596,319 1,377,159 8,973,478 2,661,621
Lease Receivables, net 17,199 — 17,199 421,271
Internal balances 185,083 (185,083) — —
Due from component units/primary 1,255 511 1,766 621,835
Inventories 149,590 10,977 160,567 124,591
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — 172 172 517,944
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury — 400,357 400,357 665,544
Restricted investments — 519,638 519,638 8,303,819
Advances to other entities 815,086 — 815,086 —
Other loans and notes receivable, net 4,160,800 1,869,309 6,030,109 2,410,945
Other assets 42,581 72,416 114,997 896,596
Right to use leased assets, net 1,342,537 42,938 1,385,475 638,751
Capital assets, net 85,836,101 17,120,038 102,956,139 27,962,031

Total assets 149,798,651 54,522,625 204,321,276 71,080,819

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Accum. decrease in fair value - hedging derivatives — — — 25,056
Grants paid in advance 43,751 — 43,751 —
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 63,457 15,452 78,909 54,258
Lease related — — — 2,355
Pension-related items 2,628,951 53,175 2,682,126 1,360,501
Other postemployment benefits 1,185,709 42,447 1,228,156 892,576
Asset retirement obligations — — — 8,975

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,921,868 111,074 4,032,942 2,343,721
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,499,377 1,264,308 4,763,685 3,020,135
Due to other governments 6 2,060 2,066 —
Due to component units/primary 198,510 235 198,745 107,028
Obligations under security lending agreements 3,604,483 1,597,953 5,202,436 —
Leases 1,287,792 44,420 1,332,212 610,020
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 4,308,167 2,631,868 6,940,035 2,814,930
Due in more than one year 26,252,584 17,136,875 43,389,459 14,801,485
Total liabilities 39,150,919 22,677,719 61,828,638 21,353,598
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 3,708,869 — 3,708,869 —
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts — 125,229 125,229 109,030
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 121,149 16,047 137,196 1,824
Lease related 17,199 — 17,199 468,124
Pension-related items 5,556,760 97,532 5,654,292 2,632,382
Other postemployment benefits liability 3,414,711 87,624 3,502,335 1,325,253
Irrevocable split-interest agreements — — — 60,441
Total deferred inflows of resources 12,818,688 326,432 13,145,120 4,597,054
NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets 80,475,306 13,369,983 93,845,289 23,681,094
Restricted for
Natural resources, environment, and growth management 5,678,156 — 5,678,156 —
Public Education 489,818 — 489,818 —
Health and Family Services 2,605,583 — 2,605,583 —
Transportation 1,885,290 283,558 2,168,848 —
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,667,053 — 1,667,053 —
Debt service 16,041 — 16,041 65,519
Lottery — 91,978 91,978 —
Prepaid College Program — 4,080,834 4,080,834 —
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — 10,909,990 10,909,990 —
Reemployment Assistance — 1,821,414 1,821,414 —
Other 1,109,053 5,764 1,114,817 8,514,208
Funds held for permanent endowment
Expendable — — — 2,191,470
Nonexpendable:
Inventories — — — 4,090,256
Unrestricted 7,824,612 1,066,027 8,890,639 8,931,341
Total net position $ 101,750,912  § 31,629,548  $ 133,380,460 $ 47,473,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 9,386,057 $ 6,692,243 $ 7,865,444  $ 2,518 $ 5,174,148
Education 25,407,680 268,191 6,309,171 27 (18,830,291)
Human services 48,863,693 3,036,226 35,193,369 4,325 (10,629,773)
Criminal justice and corrections 4,673,751 295,836 181,973 17,969 (4,177,973)
Natural resources and environment 3,315,724 326,094 2,073,153 25,701 (890,776)
Transportation 5,795,065 330,766 74,736 1,799,848 (3,589,715)
Judicial branch 454,271 96,283 1,865 — (356,123)
Indirect interest on long-term debt 73,810 — — — (73,810)
Total governmental activities 97,970,051 11,045,639 51,699,711 1,850,388 (33,374,313)
Business-type activities:
Transportation 964,506 1,259,541 — — 295,035
Lottery 6,982,645 9,301,527 — — 2,318,882
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund 71,455 799,466 — — 728,011
Prepaid College Program (1,092,649) (1,716,398) — — (623,749)
Reemployment Assistance 1,784,609 819,741 1,298,727 — 333,859
Nonmajor enterprise funds 385,527 570,274 585 — 185,332
Total business-type activities 9,096,093 11,034,151 1,299,312 — 3,237,370
Total primary government $ 107,066,144 § 22,079,790 $ 52,999,023 $ 1,850,388 $ (30,136,943)
Component units
Florida Housing Finance Corporation $ 213,045 § 88,751 § — 8 — 8 (124,294)
University of Florida 7,164,864 5,243,710 1,240,527 36,635 (643,992)
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation 1,199,169 1,021,360 — — (177,809)
Nonmajor component units 14,226,893 3,578,634 5,748,799 871,813 (4,027,647)
Total component units $ 22803971 § 9,932,455 $ 6,989,326 $ 908,448 $  (4,973,742)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Net (expense) revenue $ (33,374,313) $ 3,237,370  $ (30,136,943) $  (4,973,742)
General revenues:
Taxes
Sales and use tax 38,414,357 — 38,414,357 —
Fuel taxes 3,423,181 — 3,423,181 —
Corporate income tax 3,765,350 — 3,765,350 —
Documentary stamp tax 5,326,594 — 5,326,594 —
Intangible personal property tax 840,184 — 840,184 —
Communications service tax 924,320 — 924,320 —
Beverage and tobacco taxes 1,407,935 — 1,407,935 —
Insurance premium tax 1,571,412 — 1,571,412 —
Gross receipts utilities tax 875,652 — 875,652 —
Property taxes — — — 516,423
Other taxes 1,075,639 — 1,075,639 —
Investment earning (loss) (1,600,023) (22,373) (1,622,396) (1,159,481)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (13,749) (7,252) (21,001) (24,793)
Payments from the State of Florida — — — 5,143411
Miscellaneous — 2,602 2,602 1,070,415
Transfers 1,187,821 (1,187,821) — —
Contributions to permanent funds — — — 122,160
Total general revenues, transfers and contributions 57,198,673 (1,214,844) 55,983,829 5,668,135
Changes in net position 23,824,360 2,022,526 25,846,886 694,393
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 2) 77,926,552 29,607,022 107,533,574 46,779,495
Net position - ending $ 101,750,912 § 31,629,548 § 133,380,460 $ 47,473,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

30



2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

GENERAL FUND
This fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for the financial resources and transactions not
accounted for in other funds.

NATURAL RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT, AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT
This fund accounts for operations of various programs, such as air pollution control, water quality assurance,
ecosystem management, and marine resources conservation.

PUBLIC EDUCATION
This fund includes internal reporting funds administered by the Department of Education to operate
education-related programs.

HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
This fund includes internal reporting funds used to operate various health and family service-related
programs, such as health care, elder affairs, and public assistance.

TRANSPORTATION
This fund includes the internal reporting special revenue funds used to account for the administration of the
maintenance and development of the State highway system and other transportation-related projects.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor governmental funds are presented, by fund type, beginning on page 209.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled investments with State Treasury
Other investments
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Due from component units/primary
Lease receivables
Inventories
Other
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Long-term investments
Lease receivables, net
Advances to other funds
Advances to other entities
Other loans and notes receivable, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Grants paid in advance
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to component units/primary
Compensated absences
Claims payable
Deposits
Obligations under security lending agreements
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Advances from other funds
Deposits
Other
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue
Unavailable revenue
Lease related
Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Inventories
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Natural Resources,

Environment, and Health and

General Growth Public Family

Fund Management Education Services
5,618 § 42064 § — 3 11,936
31,140,317 4,100,843 1,858,141 2,235,406
308,622 — — —
2,424,707 267,398 5,490 3,474,384
233,931 100,668 71,633 127,104
242 349 — —
5 — — 4
7,440 755 — 31,470
41,649 — — —
34,162,531 4,474,277 1,935,264 5,880,804
16,151 — — 10
1,425 — — —
10,898 4,105 798,647 —
1,130 1,877,501 588 36,782
29,604 1,881,606 799,235 36,792
34,192,135 6,355,883 2,734,499 5,917,596
34,192,135 6,355,883 2,734,499 5,917,596
797,165 75,354 3,742 653,761
592,877 25,847 4,153 42,305
27,637 154,573 43 9,718
10,180 1,956 69 1,576
203,094 — — 1,095,814
274 80,965 13,745 —
2,963,502 113,860 107,783 9,214
4,594,729 452,555 129,535 1,812,388
_ — 1,155,877 —
— — 250 —
— — 1,156,127 —
4,594,729 452,555 1,285,662 1,812,388
1,582,597 5,857 — 49,632
223,827 971 — 1,314,673
16,155 1 — 14
1,822,579 6,829 — 1,364,319
18,312 755 — 31,470
60,576 3,069,988 1,453,904 319,935
549,936 2,825,756 855,665 2,389,484
27,146,003 — (860,732) —
27,774,827 5,896,499 1,448,837 2,740,889
34,192,135 § 6,355,883  $ 2,734,499 $ 5,917,596
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Transportation Funds Totals 6/30/22
948 $ 16,500 § 39,266
4,007,169 4,642,750 47,984,626
— 327,501 636,123
329,654 936,329 7,438,462
326,368 189,277 1,048,981
— 15 606
— 6 15
8,863 101,062 149,590
9 177 41,835
4,673,011 6,213,617 57,339,504
— 38,410 38,410
— — 16,161
132,662 — 134,087
1,436 — 815,086
432,362 1,812,437 4,160,800
566,460 1,850,847 5,164,544
5,239,471 8,004,464 62,504,048
43,751 — 43,751
43,751 — 43,751
5,283,222 8,064,464 62,547,799
744,943 607,249 2,882,214
157,656 274,730 1,097,568
— 6,258 198,229
625 951 15,357
— 5,975 1,304,883
— 6,533 101,517
228,741 134,088 3,557,188
1,131,965 1,035,784 9,156,956
50,000 983 1,206,860
— 67 67
— — 250
50,000 1,050 1,207,177
1,181,965 1,036,834 10,364,133
1,902,243 168,540 3,708,869
313,725 1,588,466 3,441,662
— 6 16,176
2,215,968 1,757,012 7,166,707
8,871 101,263 160,671
50 2,056,215 6,960,668
1,876,368 3,113,140 11,610,349
— — 26,285,271
1,885,289 5,270,618 45,016,959
5,283,222 § 8,004,464 § 62,547,799
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are

different because:

Capital assets and leased assets used in governmental activities reported in
governmental funds are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the funds.

Land and other nondepreciable assets
Nondepreciable infrastructure

Buildings, equipment and other depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation

Construction work in progress

Right to use leased assets
Accumulated amortization

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences

Installment purchases/leases/public-private partnership agreements
Claims payable

Bonds payable

Certificates of participation payable

Pension liability

Other postemployment benefits

Due to other governments

Other

Deferred amounts on refunding are reported in the Statement of Net Position as
deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources (to be amortized as interest
expense) but are not reported in the funds.

Deferred amounts for pension-related items are reported in the Statement of Net

Position as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources (to be amortized as

pension expense) but are not reported in the funds.

Deferred amounts for other postemployment items are reported in the Statement
of Net Position as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources (to be
amortized as pension expense) but are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable on bonds that is not recognized on the fund statements
but is recognized on the Statement of Net Position.

Assets (receivables) not available to provide current resources are offset with
deferred inflows of resources in the fund statements. The reduction of the
deferred inflow and recognition of revenue increases net position in the
Statement of Net Position.

Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods and services

to other funds or agencies within the state. Therefore, the excess of assets over

liabilities of the internal service funds are included as governmental activities on

the Statement of Net Position.

22,059,280

58,376,788
7,140,926

(4,954,385)
2,320,821

1,392,748
(162,346)

(762,601)
(3,577.430)
(2,356,322)

(10,843,177)

(41,998)
(7,021,933)
(3,400,470)

(339,979)
(22,309)

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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45,016,959

84,943,430

1,230,402

(28,366,219)

(54,828)

(2,899,017)

(2,185,462)

(22,275)

3,441,662

646,260

101,750,912
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Natural
Resources,
Environment, and Health and
General Growth Public Family
Fund Management Education Services
REVENUES
Taxes $ 51,757,327  § 313,595 § 1,204,937 803,063
Licenses and permits 450,317 63,892 1,146 43,636
Fees — — — —
Fees and charges 1,690,723 184,546 56,905 2,234,366
Grants and donations 4,787,704 231,500 6,110,130 34,930,277
Investment earnings (losses) (1,573,844) (38,610) (55,156) 40,291
Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments 185,390 6,193 219,276 70,850
Other (56,189) 4,209 31,661 574,150
Total revenues 57,241,428 765,325 7,568,899 38,696,633
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,149,229 16,727 — 142,787
Education 15,922,607 — 9,067,624 —
Human services 8,934,421 — — 38,785,912
Criminal justice and corrections 4,309,468 — — —
Natural resources and environment 666,485 1,435,144 — —
Transportation 10,086 — — —
Judicial branch 423,423 — — —
Capital outlay 771,357 123,421 279 235,932
Gain (loss) on disposal of general fixed assets — — — —
Debt service:
Principal retirement 9,072 235 — —
Interest and fiscal charges 9,035 395 — 2,265
Total expenditures 36,205,183 1,575,922 9,067,903 39,166,896
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 21,036,245 (810,597) (1,499,004) (470,263)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of bond issues 1,425 — — —
Proceeds of refunding bonds — — — —
Proceeds of financing agreements — — — —
Lease liabilities issued 548,641 28,799 — 199,206
Operating transfers in 775,973 2,279,902 2,915,864 1,534,595
Operating transfer out (8,791,555) (254,639) (1,116,538) (566,219)
Payments to refunded bond agent — — — —
Total other financing sources (uses) (7,465,516) 2,054,062 1,799,326 1,167,582
Net change in fund balances 13,570,729 1,243,465 300,322 697,319
Fund balances - beginning, as restated (Note 2) 14,204,098 4,653,034 1,148,515 2,043,570
Fund balances - ending $ 27,774,827  $ 5,896,499 § 1,448,837 2,740,889

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Transportation Funds Totals 6/30/22
$ 3,111,445 $ 335,652 § 57,526,019
15,626 1,936,806 2,511,423
435,061 760,268 5,361,869
1,911,901 5,283,241 53,254,753
(123,780) (58,565) (1,809,664)
2,997 549,128 1,033,834
205,604 109,000 868,435
5,558,854 8,915,530 118,746,669
220,434 3,809,716 9,338,893
— 224,734 25,214,965
— 483,750 48,204,083
— 567,245 4,876,713
— 1,980,514 4,082,143
5,900,510 173 5,910,769
— 105,623 529,046
2,227,735 550,491 3,909,215
308,743 1,085,796 1,403,846
71,262 456,297 539,254
8,728,684 9,264,339 104,008,927
(3,169,830) (348,309) 14,737,742
— 1,474 2,899
— 808,478 808,478
100,447 1,032 101,479
596 457,105 1,234,347
3,960,380 5,310,105 16,777,319
(852,511) (3,318,422) (14,899,884)
— (808,478) (808,478)
3,209,412 2,451,294 3,216,160
39,582 2,102,485 17,953,902
1,845,707 3,168,133 27,063,057
$ 1,885,280  $ 5,270,618 $ 45,016,959
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of goods or
services to other funds and agencies within the state. Therefore, the net revenue
(expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Governmental funds report capital outlays and leases as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets are allocated over the estimated
useful lives of the assets and reported as depreciation and amortization expense.
The amount by which capital outlay and lease expenditures exceeded depreciation

and amortization in the current period.

Capital outlay and lease expenditures

Capital asset transfers, net

Depreciation and amortization expense

$ 17,953,902

(82,544)

4,754,788
(681,526)
(423,735)

In the Statement of Activities, the gain or (loss) on the sale of assets is reported
whereas in the governmental funds only the proceeds from the sale increase financial
resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balances

by the cost of the assets sold.

In the Statement of Activities, some revenues are recognized that do not provide
current financial resources and are not recognized as revenues in the governmental
funds until available, i.e., deferred inflows of resources, unavailable revenue.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.

Increase in compensated absences

Decrease in accrued interest
Increase in claims payable

Decrease in other postemployment benefits
Increase in net pension related items
Decrease in due to other governments

Increase in other liabilities

3,649,527

(13,749)

1,797,077

28,094
2,968

(661,073)
110,363
639,054
21

(2,655)

The incurrence of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) and leases provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayments of the principal of long-term
debt and the payment of leases consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, deferred amounts on
refundings when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in

the Statement of Activities.

Bond proceeds and leases issued

Refunding bond proceeds

Financing agreement proceeds

Repayment of bonds

116,772

(2,899)
(808,478)

(1,338,982)

Repayment of leases/installment purchase contracts/certificates of participation

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Amortization of bond premium

Amortization of amount deferred on refunding of debt

Other

Change in net position of governmental activities

1,085,221
502,689
808,478
196,556

937
(40,147)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

TRANSPORTATION
This fund primarily accounts for operations of the Florida Turnpike Enterprise which includes the Florida
Turnpike System.

LOTTERY
This fund accounts for state lottery operations, which include sale of lottery tickets, payment of lottery prizes,
and transfers to the Education Enhancement Trust Fund.

FLORIDA HURRICANE CATASTROPHE FUND
This fund, administered by the State Board of Administration, is used to help cover insurers’ losses in the
event of a hurricane disaster.

PREPAID COLLEGE PROGRAM

This fund, administered by the State Board of Administration, is used to account for payments from
purchasers of the Florida Prepaid College Program, a blended component unit. This program was created to
provide a medium through which the cost of state post-secondary education may be paid in advance of
enrollment at a rate lower than the projected corresponding costs at the time of enrollment.
REEMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE

This fund accounts for the receipt of monies for and payment of unemployment compensation benefits.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor enterprise funds are presented on page 250.

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are presented on page 257.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled investments with State Treasury
Other investments
Receivables, net
Lease receivables, net
Due from other funds
Due from component units/primary
Inventories
Other
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury
Restricted investments
Long-term investments
Advances to other funds
Lease receivables, net
Other loans and notes receivable, net
Right to use leased assets
Accumulated amortization
Capital assets
Land and other non-depreciable assets
Non-depreciable infrastructure

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation
Construction work in progress
Other
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amount deferred on refunding of debt
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits
Total deferred outflows of resources

Hurricane

Catastrophe Prepaid College Reemployment

Transportation Lottery Fund Program Assistance
$ 1,109 § 286 $ $ 92,554 13,325
958,651 268,274 — 1,620,169
104,074 — 5,758,583 2,300,868 —
21,543 42,084 137,825 709,907 262,923
266,931 — 42 994
— — — 291
9,324 1,652 — —
25,000 1,731 3 —
1,386,632 314,027 5,896,408 3,103,374 1,897,702
172 — — — —
340,496 59,861 — —
266,261 253,377 — —
— — 10,058,927 11,546,299 —
50,000 — — —
74,511 — 1,794,661 —
— 31,228 — — —
— (8,422) — — —
1,415,682 493 — —
13,124,918 — — —
1,598,146 13,260 108 122 —
(705,303) (9,856) 1) on —
1,391,889 — — 8,196 —
— 32,117 — — —
17,556,772 372,058 10,058,964 13,349,187 —
18,943,404 686,085 15,955,372 16,452,561 1,897,702
15,452 — — —
— 7,558 581 1,238 —
— 5,241 87 151 —
15,452 12,799 668 1,389 —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Totals 6/30/22 Funds

34877 $ 142,151  § 11,653
439,149 3,286,243 883,724
7,870 8,171,395 58,298
30,792 1,205,074 37,353
— _ 142
14,248 282,215 22,409
220 511 649

1 10,977 —

1,906 28,640 8
529,063 13,127,206 1,014,236
— 172 —

— 400,357 —

— 519,638 —
89,178 21,694,404 —
— 50,000 —

_ _ 881

137 1,869,309 —
24,565 55,793 113,423
(4,433) (12,855) (1,288)
— 1,416,175 296

— 13,124,918 —
384,568 1,996,204 1,570,896
(102,963) (818,284) (711,709)
940 1,401,025 33,187
11,659 43,776 —
403,651 41,740,632 1,005,686
932,714 54,867,838 2,019,922
— 15,452 2,797
43,798 53,175 26,571
36,968 42,447 21,298
80,766 111,074 50,666
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued prize liability
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Due to component units/primary
Compensated absences
Installment purchases/leases
Bonds payable
Bonds payable from restricted assets
Deposits
Claims payable
Obligations under security lending agreements
Certificates of participation payable
Tuition and housing benefits payable
Pension liability
Other postemployment benefits

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Advances from other funds
Accrued prize liability
Bonds payable
Certificates of participation payable
Installment purchases/leases
Deposits
Compensated absences
Tuition and housing benefits payable
Pension liability
Other postemployment benefits liability
Other

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred service concession arrangement receipts

Amount deferred on refunding of debt
Lease related
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for Reemployment Assistance
Restricted for Lottery
Restricted for Hurricane Catastrophe Fund
Restricted for Prepaid College Program
Restricted for Transportation
Restricted - other
Unrestricted

Total net position

Hurricane

Catastrophe Prepaid College Reemployment

Transportation Lottery Fund Program Assistance
65,526 10,974 30,121 1,030,372 34,947
— 270,950 — — —
— — — — 2,060
152,579 48,638 423 55,942 1,506
— 769 72 104 —
14,359 3,981 — — —
147,650 — — — —
127,338 — — — —
_ — 1,512,861 — —
81,228 20,654 — 1,473,121 —
— — — 523,375 —
— 32 2 4 —
— 505 7 8 —
588,680 356,503 1,543,486 3,082,926 38,513
132,604 — — — —
— 220,724 — — —
3,275,409 — 3,500,000 — —
353,792 19,222 — — —
153 — — — —
— 2,704 208 708 —
— — — 9,277,599 —
— 9,819 717 1,164 —
— 28,358 407 466 —
3,761,958 280,827 3,501,332 9,279,937 —
4,350,638 637,330 5,044,818 12,362,863 38,513
125,229 — — — —
16,047 — — — —
— 15,761 1,030 1,775 —
— 13,272 165 251 —
141,276 29,033 1,195 2,026 —
13,248,786 3,897 37 8,227 —
— — — — 1,859,189
— 91,978 — — —
_ — 10,909,990 — -
— — — 4,080,834 —
283,558 — — — —
934,598 (63,354) — — —
14,466,942 32,521 10.910.027 4,089,061 _$ 1.859.189




2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

Nonmajor

Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Totals 6/30/22 Funds
35,520 1,207,460 277,369
— 270,950 —
— 2,060 6
10,370 269,458 68,357
234 234 281
5,477 6,422 1,588
5,200 23,540 6,066
— — 14,260
— 147,650 —
24,176 151,514 203,459
— 1,512,861 —
22,950 1,597,953 47,295
— — 35,085
— 523,375 —
219 257 96
2,933 3,453 1,120
107,079 5,717,187 654,982
— 132,604 500
— 220,724 —
— 6,775,409 125,262
— — 370,255
20,452 393,466 45,305
207,579 207,732 —
17,023 20,643 5,347
— 9,277,599 —
61,571 73,271 32,884
164,704 193,935 62,909
10,362 10,362 —
481,691 17,305,745 642,462
588,770 23,022,932 1,297,444
- 125,229 —
— 16,047 5,661
— — 1,023
78,966 97,532 55,362
73,936 87,624 64,838
152,902 326,432 126,884
109,036 13,369,983 344,948
— 1,859,189 —
— 91,978 —
— 10,909,990 —
— 4,080,834 —
— 283,558 —
5,764 5,764 239,741
157,008 1,028,252 61,571
271.808 31,629,548 646.260
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales - nonstate
Change in actuarial value of contract premiums
Fees
Fees and charges
Sales - state
Rents and royalties - nonstate
Rents - state
Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments
Other

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefit payments
Payment of lottery winnings
Commissions on lottery sales
Contractual services
Change in actuarial value of contract benefit payments
Insurance claims expense
Personal services
Amortization and depreciation
Materials and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Basic services
Interest and fiscal charges

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grants and donations
Investment earnings (losses)
Interest and fiscal charges
Fines, forfeits, judgments and settlements
Property disposition gain (loss)
Grant expense and client benefits
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt
Other

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Capital contributions
Change in net position
Total net position - beginning, as restated (Note 2)
Total net position - ending

Hurricane
Catastrophe Prepaid College
Transportation Lottery Fund Program

$ 9,542 § 9,331,215  §$ 1,211,660 $ 393,589
— — — (91,710)
1,283,436 — 1 1,010
— — 46 225

9,133 522 — —

63 96 — —

314 — — —
1,302,488 9,331,833 1,211,707 303,114
— 6,245,455 — —

— 523,132 — —
709,937 168,651 4,339 374,193
— — — (1,501,068)

19,761 26,047 1,790 2,954
84,769 4,487 16 21
27,132 1,516 19 19

— 843 — —

— 1,481 145 200

— 186 — 4
841,599 6,971,798 6,309 (1,123,677)
460,889 2,360,035 1,205,398 1,426,791
(43,612) (30,306) (412,241) (2,019,512)
(122,965) (10,847) (65,146) (15,172)
2,047 — 264 290
(3,446) (4,067) — €))
(167,976) (45,220) (477,123) (2,034,395)
292,913 2,314,815 728,275 (607,604)
151,156 39 — —
(73,700) (2,333,647) (13,500) (16,111)
681,770 — — —
1,052,139 (18,793) 714,775 (623,715)
13,414,803 51,314 10,195,252 4,712,776
$ 14,466,942 $ 32,521  § 10,910,027  $ 4,089,061

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

Nonmajor Internal
Reemployment Enterprise Service
Assistance Funds Totals 6/30/22 Funds

$ — 104,772 11,050,778 $ 29,081
— — (91,710) —
660,102 305,716 2,250,265 —
— — — 12

— 71,961 72,232 2,834,007

— — 9,655 —

— 1,094 1,094 68,384

— 9,938 10,097 801

— 44,786 45,100 17,957
660,102 538,267 13,347,511 2,950,242
1,702,423 — 1,702,423 —
— — 6,245,455 —

— — 523,132 —

— 122,228 1,379,348 537,224

— — (1,501,068) —

_ — — 2,574,784

— 194,566 245,118 47,063

— 20,112 109,405 34,759

— 6,498 35,184 3,897

— 2,161 3,004 1,992

— 33,292 35,118 6,617

— 3,477 3,667 1,009
1,702,423 382,334 8,780,786 3,207,345
(1,042,321) 155,933 4,566,725 (257,103)
1,298,727 585 1,299,312 —
55,830 (9,935) (2,459,776) (21,665)
— (909) (215,039) (14,670)

- 1 2,602 —
— 8 (7,5006) (209)

— (835) (835) —

— 295 295 —

21,622 (1,389) 20,233 234,577
1,376,179 (12,179) (1,360,714) 198,033
333,858 143,754 3,206,011 (59,070)
531,912 27,151 710,258 24,154
(12,562) (125,994) (2,575,514) (47,699)

— 1 681,771 71
853,208 44,912 2,022,526 (82,544)
1,005,981 226,896 29,607,022 728,804
$ 1,859,189 § 271,808 31,629,548 $ 646,260
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to vendors
Cash paid to employees
Cash received/(paid) for grants
Lottery prizes
Cash paid for insurance claims
Reemployment assistance
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers in (out)
Advances from or repayment from other funds
Advances, grants or loans (to) from or repayment from others
Cash received from sale of bonds
Payment of bonds or loans (principal and interest)
Cash received from noncapital grants or donations

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sale or lease of capital assets

Cash received from the issuance of debt

Payment of bond principal

Payment of principal on installment purchases/leases

Payment of interest on bonds/installment purchases/leases

Purchase or construction of capital assets

Line of credit draws/(payments)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Security lending

Proceeds from the sale or maturity of investments

Cash paid to grand prize winners upon maturity of
grand prize investments

Investment earnings

Purchase of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Hurricane
Catastrophe
Transportation Lottery Fund

$ 1,271,776 $ 9,319,257 § 1,211,276
(710,841) (696,437) (5,081)
(19,760) (28,659) (1,794)

15,863 — —

— (6,304,228) —
— — (1,052,980)

557,038 2,289,933 151,421
458,083 (2,392,639) (13,500)

3,075 — —

— — 8
(5,570) — (718,277)
455,588 (2,392,639) (731,769)

119 — —

932,061 — —

(369,601) — —

(141,887) — —
(756,629) (4,887) 3)
(335,937) (4,887) 3)

51,669 20,654 —

2,252,144 22,801 22,316,286

— (22,801) —

(49,150) (6,212) 127,940
(2,277,972) (20,645) (21,863,875)

(23,309) (6,203) 580,351

653,380 (113,796) —

647,048 442217 —

$ 1,300,428 $ 328,421 §$ —




2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

Nonmajor Internal
Prepaid College Reemployment Enterprise Service
Program Assistance Funds Totals 6/30/22 Funds
537,549 § 550,450 482,590 3 13,372,898 $ 2,902,944
(581,764) — (190,333) (2,184,456) (614,709)
(2,694) — (196,479) (249,386) (75,522)
— — 57,471 73,334 1
— — — (6,304,228) —
— — — (1,052,980) (2,539,782)
— (1,560,106) — (1,560,106) —
(46,909) (1,009,656) 153,249 2,095,076 (327,068)
(16,111) 519,350 (98,620) (1,543,437) 241,428
— — — 3,075 (200)
_ _ _ 8 _
— — — (723,847) —
— 1,298,727 585 1,299,312 87
(16,111) 1,818,077 (98,035) (964,889) 241,315
— — 23 142 —
— — — 932,061 —
— — — (369,601) (16,157)
— — (3,049) (3,049) —
— — (56) (141,943) (1,265)
(7,515) — (1,680) (770,714) (12,945)
(7,515) — (4,762) (353,104) (30,367)
6,575 — 7,045 85,943 14,354
19,010,527 — 84,524 43,686,282 107,098
— — — (22,801) —
174,329 55,830 (10,383) 292,354 (22,338)
(19,100,510) — (107,195) (43,370,197) —
90,921 55,830 (26,009) 671,581 99,114
20,386 864,251 24,443 1,448,664 (17,006)
72,168 769,243 449,583 2,380,259 912,383
92,554 % 1,633,494 474,026 $ 3,828,923 § 895,377
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

Hurricane
Catastrophe
Transportation Lottery Fund
Operating income (loss) $ 460,889 $ 2,360,035 $ 1,205,398
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 84,769 4,487 16
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (4,831) (11,023) (1,305)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (18,244) — —
Increase (decrease) in allowance for uncollectibles — (741) 1,246
(Increase) decrease in inventories (1,349) 790 —
(Increase) decrease in future contract premiums and other receivables — — —
(Increase) decrease in other noncurrent assets — 161 —
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (7,449) (2,229) (495)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences — (219) 7
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 13,346 — —
Increase (decrease) in tuition and housing benefits payable — — —
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liability — — —
(Increase) decrease in deposits and prepaid items 25,000 — 2
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 4,907 — —
Increase (decrease) in prize liability — (58,934) —
Increase (decrease) in pension liability and deferrals — (2,279) 92)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability and deferrals — (115) 6
Increase (decrease) in claims payable — — (1,053,362)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 557,038 $ 2,289,933 $ 151,421
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Borrowing under lease or installment purchase $ 37,375 $ — 3 —
Change in fair value of investments (56,702) (52,549) (501,312)
Contribution of capital assets 66,173 — —
Other noncash items 49,115 — —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

Nonmajor Internal
Prepaid College  Reemployment Enterprise Totals Service
Program Assistance Funds 6/30/22 Funds
$ 1,426,791 $§  (1,042,321) § 155,933  § 4,566,725 § (257,103)
21 — 20,112 109,405 34,759
(2,856) (149,799) 14,306 (155,508) (106,457)
56 — (2,756) (20,944) (192)
— 659,134 3,577) 656,062 12,578
— — — (559) —
94,576 — — 94,576 —
— — 5 166 —
(75,802) (476,670) (60,176) (622,821) 34,100
226 — (2,009) (1,995) (2,143)
10,041 — (15) 23,372 (418)
(1,501,068) — — (1,501,068) —
— — (2,134) (2,134) 1,009
1,216 — 6) 26,212 ®
— — 41,388 46,295 (26,558)
— — — (58,934) —
(110) — (7,901) (10,382) (12,139)
— — 79 30) (4,496)
— — — (1,053,362) —
$ (46,909) $  (1,009,656) $ 153,249 § 2,095,076 $ (327,068)
$ — 3 — 3 — 3 37,375 $ —
(2,335,127) — 1,564 (2,944,126) —
— — — 66,173 —
— — 48,716 97,831 —
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 267.

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 273.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 279.

CUSTODIAL FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 283.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

Pension and

Other
Private- Employee
Purpose Benefits Investment Custodial Totals
Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Funds 6/30/22

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14274  § 102,360 $ 3,060,164 $ 137,840 3,314,638
Pooled investments with State Treasury 356,327 220,670 845,779 1,750,991 3,173,767

Total cash and cash equivalents 370,601 323,030 3,905,943 1,888,831 6,488,405
Investments
Certificates of deposit — 403,384 4,029,019 — 4,432,403
U.S. government & federally guaranteed obligations 68,125 11,791,550 153,456 — 12,013,131
Federal agencies 78,743 7,823,886 — — 7,902,629
Commercial paper 59,693 5,305,755 8,045,263 — 13,410,711
Repurchase agreements — 1,200,000 319,169 — 1,519,169
Bonds and notes 122,222 12,115,385 265,125 — 12,502,732
International bonds and notes 29,004 3,089,979 — — 3,118,983
Real estate contracts — 16,722,306 — — 16,722,306
Mutual fund investments 656,779 13,399,413 — — 14,056,192
Money market and short-term investments 120,631 550,950 556,126 32,032 1,259,739
Domestic equity 3,994 51,031,355 — — 51,035,349
Alternative investments — 40,680,622 — — 40,680,622
International equity — 29,548,246 — — 29,548,246
International equity commingled — 5,525,991 — — 5,525,991
Deferred compensation annuities — 10,883 — — 10,883
Self-directed brokerage investments — 1,031,641 — — 1,031,641
Other investments 64 6,866 — 670 7,600

Total investments 1,139,255 200,238,212 13,368,158 32,702 214,778,327
Receivables
Accounts receivable 595 47,587 — 520,483 568,665
State contributions receivable — 69,891 — — 69,891
Nonstate contributions receivable — 425,947 — — 425,947
Interest receivable 5,027 138,096 9,839 344 153,306
Dividends receivable 147 292,585 — — 292,732
Pending investment sales 28,886 887,419 — — 916,305
Foreign currency contracts receivable — 146,481 — — 146,481
Futures trade equity 20 — — — 20
Due from state funds 56,385 125,190 — 288,945 470,520
Due from other governments — — — — —

Total receivables 91,060 2,133,196 9,839 809,772 3,043,867
Security lending collateral — 943,509 — — 943,509
Advances to other funds 1,155,877 — — — 1,155,877
Advances to other entities — — — 180,225 180,225
Right to use leased assets — 17,596 — — 17,596
Accumulated amortization — (895) — — (895)
Capital assets 268 1,166 — 585 2,019
Accumulated depreciation (206) (520) — (492) (1,218)
Other assets — 9,854 24 2,849 12,727

Total assets 2,756,855 203,665,148 17,283,964 2,914,472 226,620,439
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related items 1,436 108 — — 1,544
Other postemployment benefits 692 4,693 — — 5,385

Total deferred outflows of resources 2,128 4,801 — — 6,929

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands

Pension and

Other
Private- Employee
Purpose Benefits Investment Custodial Totals
Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Funds 6/30/22

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5761  $ 158376 $ 9,635 $ 575,142 $ 748,914
Due to other funds 378 108,214 136 280,014 388,742
DROP — 295,814 — — 295,814
Pending investment purchases 105,987 3,038,274 39,411 — 3,183,672
Short sell obligations — 36,041 — — 36,041
Foreign currency contracts payable — 146,378 — — 146,378
Broker rebate fees — 942 — — 942
Due to other governments — — 74 1,292,535 1,292,609
Obligations under security lending agreements 35,317 963,819 53,917 18,640 1,071,693
Claims payable — — — 30,344 30,344
Deposits payable 55,174 — — 168,226 223,400
Compensated absences 586 1,281 — — 1,867
Installment purchases/leases — 823 — — 823
Other liabilities — 16,013 — — 16,013
Pension liability 1,346 180 — — 1,526
Other postemployment benefits liability 4,400 14,376 — — 18,776

Total liabilities 208,949 4,780,531 103,173 2,364,901 7,457,554
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue — 76,500 — 76,162 152,662
Pension-related items 1,712 283 — — 1,995
Other postemployment benefits 1,994 6,698 — — 8,692

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,706 83,481 — 76,162 163,349
NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits — 193,145,672 — — 193,145,672
Restricted for other postemployment benefits — 5,660,265 — — 5,660,265
Restricted for individuals, organizations and other governments 2,546,328 — 17,180,791 473,409 20,200,528

Total Net Position $ 2,546,328 $198,805,937 $ 17,180,791 $ 473,409 $219,006,465

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)
Pension and

Other
Private- Employee
Purpose Benefits Investments Totals
Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds 6/30/22
ADDITIONS
Contributions and other deposits
Pension fund employer contributions - state $ — $ 1,013,367 $ — 1,013,367
Pension fund employer contributions - nonstate — 4,451,652 — 4,451,652
Pension fund employee contributions — 1,124,114 — 1,124,114
Other contributions — 168,573 — 175,112
Purchase of time by employees — 5,553 — 5,553
Fees 771 1,884 — 1,723,872
Grants and contributions 247,831 — — 250,398
Flexible benefits contributions — 342,104 — 342,104
Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments 196 52 84 87,899
Unclaimed property remittances 638,743 — — 638,743
Receivership assets acquired — — — 252,248
Transfers in from state funds 17,881 968,067 — 987,218
Total contributions and other deposits 905,422 8,075,366 84 11,052,280
Investment income
Interest income 3,767 1,382,731 39,345 1,428,978
Dividends 11,244 2,007,862 — 2,019,106
Other investment income (loss) — 4,235,588 — 4,235,576
Net increase (decrease) in fair market value (159,590)  (23,689,652) 1,519 (23,847,722)
Total investment income (loss) (144,579)  (16,063,471) 40,864 (16,164,062)
Investment activity expense (3,038) (760,761) (6,408) (770,207)
Net income (loss) from investing activity (147,617)  (16,824,232) 34,456 (16,934,269)
Security lending activity
Security lending income — 24,032 — 24,032
Security lending expense — (4,221) — (4,221)
Net income from security lending — 19,811 — 19,811
Total net investment income (loss) (147,617)  (16,804,421) 34,456 (16,914,458)
Other additions 1,062,841 25,528 — 11,914,231
Total additions 1,820,646 (8,703,527) 34,540 6,052,053
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments — 14,348,530 — 14,348,530
Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets — 895 — 895
Insurance claims expense — 9,550 — 85,871
Capital outlay 13 — — 13
Supplemental insurance payments — 98,843 — 98,843
Lease liabilities issued ®) — — ®)
Flexible reimbursement payments — 27,027 — 27,027
Life insurance premium payments — 36,128 — 36,128
Remittances to annuity companies — 218,169 — 218,169
Program contribution refunds — 28,344 — 28,344
Interest expense 1,945 5 — 2,353
Student loan default payments 61,265 — — 61,265
Payments to unclaimed property claimants 383,335 — — 383,335
Distribution to State School Fund 218,892 — — 218,892
Administrative expense 13,455 26,756 51 78,915
Property disposition gain (loss) 1 31 — 32
Interest and fiscal charges — 189 — 189
Transfers out to state funds 2,250 971,685 — 975,852
Other deductions 1,174,193 17 — 13,788,933
Total deductions 1,855,341 15,766,169 51 30,353,578
Depositor activity
Deposits 754,452 — 27,743,336 28,500,127
Withdrawals (1,042,125) — (27,044,628) (28,089,092)
Excess (deficiency) of deposits over withdrawals (287,673) — 698,708 411,035
Change in net position (322,368)  (24,469,096) 733,197 (23,890,490)
Net position - beginning, restated (Note 2) 2,868,696 223,275,633 16,447,594 242,896,955
Net position - ending $ 2,546,328  $198,805,937 $ 17,180,791 $219,006,465

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2022 STATE OF FLORIDAACFR

COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Component Units

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

Pursuant to Section 420.504, Florida Statutes, this corporation was created as an entrepreneurial public corporation organized to
provide and promote public welfare by administering the governmental function of financing or refinancing housing and related
facilities in Florida.

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA
University of Florida is a major, public, comprehensive, land-grant, research university with a main campus location in
Gainesville, Florida.

CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION

Pursuant to Section 627.351(6), Florida Statutes, this corporation was created to provide certain residential property,
non-residential property, and casualty insurance coverage to qualified risks in the State of Florida under specified
circumstances.

Nonmajor Component Units

Nonmajor component units are presented beginning on page 287.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled investments with State Treasury
Other investments
Receivables, net
Lease receivables, net
Due from component units/primary
Inventories
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury
Restricted investments
Other loans and notes receivable, net
Other assets
Right to use leases assets, net of amortization
Capital assets, net
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accum. decrease in fair value-hedging derivatives
Amount deferred on refunding of debt
Lease related
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits
Asset retirement obligations
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to component units/primary
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts
Amount deferred on refunding of debt
Lease related
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits
Irrevocable split-interest agreements
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Other
Funds held for permanent endowment
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

Florida Citizens
Housing University Property Nonmajor
Finance of Insurance Component
Corporation Florida Corporation Units Totals 6/30/22
$ 271,144 § 401,304 $ 1,105,399 3 1,650,366 $ 3,428,213
973,414 1,144,402 — 2,253,666 4,371,482
2,053,649 1,890,712 8,167,899 5,943,916 18,056,176
217,038 1,021,429 239,528 1,183,626 2,661,621
— 9,016 — 412,255 421,271
— 126,094 — 495,741 621,835
— 87,041 — 37,550 124,591
— 3,453 — 514,491 517,944
— 245,922 — 419,622 665,544
— 3,680,950 — 4,622,869 8,303,819
2,293,570 18,576 — 98,799 2,410,945
7,868 402,040 9,077 477,611 896,596
— 209,530 — 429,221 638,751
— 4,602,019 823 23,359,189 27,962,031
5,816,683 13,842,488 9,522,726 41,898,922 71,080,819
— 18,153 — 6,903 25,056
— 29,040 — 25,218 54,258
— — — 2,355 2,355
— 320,190 — 1,040,311 1,360,501
— 187,291 — 705,285 892,576
— 8,975 — — 8,975
— 563,649 — 1,780,072 2,343,721
25,273 651,009 1,168,772 1,175,081 3,020,135
— 50,997 — 56,031 107,028
330,525 493,189 1,224,843 832,376 2,880,933
2,239,524 3,934,190 431,056 8,740,732 15,345,502
2,595,322 5,129,385 2,824,671 10,804,220 21,353,598
— — — 109,030 109,030
— 1,713 — 111 1,824
— 36,340 — 431,784 468,124
— 606,222 — 2,026,160 2,632,382
— 420,978 — 904,275 1,325,253
— 17,277 — 43,164 60,441
— 1,082,530 — 3,514,524 4,597,054
— 2,867,412 823 20,812,859 23,681,094
— 7,228 — 58,291 65,519
3,051,015 798,278 — 4,664,915 8,514,208
— 965,981 — 1,225,489 2,191,470
— 1,535,689 — 2,554,567 4,090,256
170,346 2,019,634 6,697,232 44,129 8,931,341
$ 3,221,361 § 8,194,222 $ 6,698,055 § 29,360,250 $ 47,473,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Florida
Operating Capital Housing
Charges for Grants and Grants and Finance
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Corporation
Florida Housing Finance $ 213,045  $ 88,751 $ — 3 — 3 (124,294)
Corporation
University of Florida 7,164,864 5,243,710 1,240,527 36,635 —
Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation 1,199,169 1,021,360 — — —
Nonmajor component units 14,226,893 3,578,634 5,748,799 871,813 —
Total component units $ 22,803971 $ 9,932,455 $ 6,989,326 _$ 908,448 (124,294)

General revenues

Property taxes —
Investment earnings (losses) —
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets —
Payments from the State of Florida —
Miscellaneous 165,033

Contributions to permanent funds —

Total general revenues and contributions 165,033
Change in net position 40,739
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 2) 3,180,622

Net position - ending $ 3,221,361

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Citizens
University Property Nonmajor
of Insurance Component Totals
Florida Corporation Units 6/30/22
$ — 3 — — §  (124,294)
(643,992) — — (643,992)
— (177,809) — (177,809)
— — (4,027,647) (4,027,647)
(643,992) (177,809) (4,027,647) (4,973,742)
— — 516,423 516,423
(343,414) (107,455) (708,612) (1,159,481)
7,242 — (32,035) (24,793)
957,539 — 4,185,872 5,143,411
392,808 — 512,574 1,070,415
53,718 — 68,442 122,160
1,067,893 (107,455) 4,542,664 5,668,135
423,901 (285,264) 515,017 694,393
7,770,321 6,983,319 28,845,233 46,779,495
$ 8,194,222  $ 6,698,055 29,360,250 $ 47,473,888
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The State of Florida’s (the state’s) financial reporting entity includes the primary government (i.e., legislative agencies, the
Governor and Cabinet, departments and agencies, commissions and boards of the Executive Branch, and various offices
relating to the Judicial Branch) and its component units.

Component units, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 2100, Defining the
Financial Reporting Entity, and Section 2600, Reporting Entity and Component Unit Presentation and Disclosure, are legally
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the state are financially accountable. Financial accountability is the
ability of the state to appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing board and to impose its will upon the
organization. When the state does not appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, GASB standards require
inclusion in the financial reporting entity if: (1) an organization is fiscally dependent upon the state because its resources are
held for the direct benefit of the state or can be accessed by the state and (2) the potential exists for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the state. In addition, component units can be other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the state are such that exclusion would cause the
state’s financial statements to be misleading.

Blended Component Units

A component unit is reported as blended when either (1) the component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the
governing body of the state, and (a) there is a financial benefit or burden relationship between the governing body of the state
and the component unit, or (b) management of the governing body of the state has operational responsibility for the component
unit, or (2) the component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the state or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, benefits the state, or (3) the component unit’s outstanding debt is expected to be repaid entirely or almost entirely
with resources of the state.

The following component units provide services entirely or almost entirely to the primary government, or have outstanding debt
that is expected to be paid entirely or almost entirely with state resources:

*  Career Source Florida, Inc.

*  Corrections Foundation, Inc.

*  Florida Board of Governors

*  Florida Citrus Commission (Department of Citrus)

*  Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation

*  Florida Commission on Community Service (Volunteer Florida)
*  Florida Department of Transportation Financing Corporation*
* Florida Engineers Management Corporation

»  Florida Prepaid College Board

»  Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind

»  Florida Surplus Lines Service Office

»  Florida Water Pollution Control Financing Corporation

» Inland Protection Financing Corporation

»  Prescription Drug Monitoring Program Foundation*

»  Scripps Florida Funding Corporation

*  Space Florida

»  State Board of Administration (SBA)

»  State Board of Education (SBE)

*  Wireless Emergency Telephone System

Blended component units that are considered major funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Other blended component units that are considered non-major funds are reported with other funds in the appropriate columns in
the fund financial statements. In addition, the financial data for some blended component units are reported in more than one
fund type, some of which are considered major and others that are considered non-major. Refer to Section D of this note for
more information on the determination criteria for major funds and a list of major funds and fund types.

* The state’s financial statements do not include amounts relating to these component units. The assets of these component
units at June 30, 2022, are approximately $1.2 million.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units that are not blended are discretely presented. In the government-wide financial statements, discrete
presentation entails reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the financial data of the state.

In addition, financial data for discretely presented component units that are considered major are reported in separate columns
in the basic financial statements for component units. Discretely presented component units that are considered non-major are
combined and reported in one column in the component unit financial statements and are aggregated by type in the combining
statements. The state’s financial statements are reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The state’s component units’
financial statements are reported for the most recent fiscal year for which an audit report is available. Some component units
have a fiscal year other than June 30. Accordingly, amounts reported by the state as due from and to component units on the
statement of net position may not agree with amounts reported by the component units as due from and to the state. Refer to
Section D of this note for more information on major fund determination and presentation. The state’s discretely presented
component units are grouped into the following categories:

State Universities and Colleges. State universities and colleges receive funding from the state. The State University System is
governed by the Florida Board of Governors. The Florida College System is governed by the State Board of Education. Each
university and college is administered by a local board of trustees. All state universities and colleges have a June 30 year-end.
Component units included in this category are:

State Universities
Major:
«  University of Florida'
Non-major:
» Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University
* Florida Atlantic University
»  Florida Gulf Coast University
*  Florida International University
»  Florida Polytechnic University
»  Florida State University
*  New College of Florida
*  University of Central Florida
*  University of North Florida
*  University of South Florida
*  University of West Florida

Florida College System Institutions
Non-major:

*  Broward College

*  Chipola College

*  College of Central Florida

»  Daytona State College

*  Eastern Florida State College

*  Florida Gateway College

»  The College of the Florida Keys

» Florida State College at Jacksonville

*  Florida SouthWestern State College

*  Gulf Coast State College

*  Hillsborough Community College

* Indian River State College

»  Lake-Sumter State College

*  Miami Dade College

*  North Florida College

*  Northwest Florida State College

*  Palm Beach State College

*  Pasco-Hernando State College

*  Pensacola State College

*  Polk State College

» Santa Fe College
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*  Seminole State College of Florida

*  South Florida State College

»  St. Johns River State College

*  St. Petersburg College

»  State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota
* Tallahassee Community College

«  Valencia College

' Significant transactions occurring during the 2021-22 fiscal year between the University of Florida and the state totaled
$982 million. These funds represent state appropriated funds to the University of Florida.

Florida Housing Finance Corporation (Major). Pursuant to Section 420.504, Florida Statutes (F.S.), this corporation was
created as an entrepreneurial public corporation organized to provide and promote public welfare by administering the
governmental function of financing or refinancing housing and related facilities in Florida. This entity has a December 31
year-end. Significant transactions occurring during the 20